
 

 

WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING 

July 13, 2016 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Warren Zoning Board of Appeals was called on Wednesday,     
July 13, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in the Warren Community Center Auditorium, 5460 Arden Avenue, 
Warren, Michigan 48092. 
 
Members of the Board present: 
Roman Nestorowicz, Chairman 
Sherry Brasza, Secretary 
Judy Furgal, Vice-Chairwoman 
Jeremy Fisher, Asst. Secretary 
Ann Pauta 
Henry Brasza 
Charles Anglin 
Jeremy Wallace 
 

Members of the Board absent: 
Albert Sophiea 
 
Also present: 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney 
Steven Watripont, Zoning Inspector 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman Nestorowicz called the meeting to Order at 7:32 p.m. 
 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

 Motion: 
 Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to excuse Board Member Sophiea; Supported by 

Board Member H. Brasza. 
 
 Voice Vote: 
 A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8 – 0). 

 
4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Secretary S. Brasza stated in regards to Item number 7, which is presently tabled; the Board 
received a letter from the zoning inspector to indefinitely table this item due to some internal 
matters. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 

 
 Motion: 

Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to adopt the agenda minus Item number 7, 
which is Tabled Indefinitely; Supported by Board Member H. Brasza. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8 – 0). 
 

Chairman Nestorowicz stated before they go on; since the Board is down one Board 
Member since Mr. Sophiea is not present, he wanted to make a comment that for anybody 
who has anything before the Board, it takes 5 votes of the remaining 8 to pass, but if you 
have a Use Variance, it takes 6 members; so as they know, the Board does have one Use 
Variance on the agenda, which is Item number 13, so, if anybody wanted to reschedule 
their item, they could do so by approaching the podium.  

 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Regular Meeting of June 22, 2016. 
 
Motion:  
Board Member Furgal made a motion to approve the minutes of June 22, 2016 as 
written; Supported by Board Member Fisher. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: Pam Vang 

      (Rescheduled from: 06/22/2016) 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  22015 Cunningham  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-32-178-003 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to 
Retain a (12’ x 16’) 192 sq. ft. shed to no less than 10’ of the rear property line. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.20 Paragraph (a) Item 5: All accessory structures, excluding garages, will not 
exceed a total of 120 square feet. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if the petitioner was present to approach the podium and for 
the record, to state her name and address and then the reasons for the petition. 
 
Ms. Pam Vang, 35530 Moravian Drive, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48312, appeared before 
the Board. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 

 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the petitioner the reason for the petition. 
 
Ms. Pam Vang stated she is asking from the Members of this Board to allow her to keep this 
shed that is oversized; she does not have a garage, so therefore, she has nowhere to put a 
lawn mower and garden tools. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing, are there any members of the public 
who wish to speak on this item? (No response)  Not seeing any, he turned the matter to the 
Board. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated she was able to stop by this home and it is well-kept and her 
yard is very nice and it is on a cement slab and it looked like that it had a drive at one time 
and if there was no further discussion…she would like to make a motion. 

 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
Retain a (12’ x 16’) 192 sq. ft. shed to no less than 10’ of the rear property line. 
 
Reasons being:  Due to the Size and Shape of the Lot. 
 
Board Member Anglin Supported the motion. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she had a question.  She stated to the petitioner that 
she lived in Sterling Heights? 
 
Ms. Pam Vang stated yes, she does. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated then why does she need a shed at this property? 
 
Ms. Pam Vang stated this is a property that she purchased two months ago; this 
will be a rental.  She does currently have a lawn mower and garden tools out there 
and she has to keep the property pretty and maintained.  
 
Board Member Pauta stated and it is supposed to be 10 feet off the rear property 
line? 
 
Ms. Pam Vang stated yes, it is. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated alright. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Secretary S. Brasza and 
Support by Board Member Anglin to approve the petitioner’s request; Roll Call.  
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 4 

 

 

 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 
 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: Mr. James D. Burg, Center Lane 
           Investments, L.L.C –USE– 
      (Rescheduled from 06/22/2016) 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. F. Matthew Ray, Architecture 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  27275 Mound Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-17-427-036 
ZONE:     M-2 & R-1-P 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to –USE– 
To allow an above ground fuel tank installed to no less than 20’ of the side (south) property 
line, as per plan and to relocate the existing fuel tank to no less than 35’ of the side (south) 
property line as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02, Item (b): Side & rear yards…Twenty (20) feet each in M-2. 
Section 17.02, Item (p): Above ground storage tanks…Not allowed in M-2. In M-3 and   
M-4 zones require all tanks shall be located not less than one hundred fifty (150) feet from 
property lines. 
Section 17.02, Item (s) Paragraph (2): Industrial Standards, Open storage other than 
junk…The designated area shall be hard surfaced and screened from the public street and 
any residential zoned areas…Further, the designated area may not exceed fifty (50) percent 
of the gross floor area of the primary structure. 
 
This matter was Tabled Indefinitely. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 5 

 

 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: St. Josaphat Ukrainian  

          Catholic Church 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Ms. Irene Maciborski, Secretary 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  26401 St. Josaphat & 26440 Ryan 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-20-152-001 & 13-20-152-002 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to 
Conduct the Annual Sunflower Fundraising Festival on: 
August 6, 2016 Saturday: From 12 noon to 11 p.m. 
August 7, 2016 Sunday: From 12 noon to 8 p.m. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.35: Fairs require the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state her name and address for 
the record and the reasons for the petition. 
 
Ms. Irene Maciborski, 4515 Nathan West, Sterling Heights; appeared before the Board and 
stated that she is there representing Saint Josaphat Ukrainian Catholic Church in Warren 
and she is present requesting the approval of the Board to hold their annual Sunflower 
Festival, which is a fundraiser. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing are there any member of the public 
who would like to speak on this item.  (No response) Not seeing any, he turned the matter to 
the Board.  Basically, this is the same request that they had in the past; the only difference 
from last year is that on Sunday instead of ending at 7:00 p.m., it goes till 8:00 p.m., correct? 
 
Ms. Irene Maciborski stated that actually the festival ends at 6:00 o’clock, but because it is 
still light outside and it is August—she means they do not like to throw everybody out—
usually the food closes down and winds down at 6:00 o’clock and the entertainment; but 
sometimes if the band wants to go half hour longer, they do not throw them out.  That is why 
she put until 7:00 or 8:00 o’clock. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated sure; and she is fine with the same…in past years, they have 
always had the condition that all music must be turned off at 10:00 p.m., are they fine with 
that also for this year?  
 
Ms. Irene Maciborski stated yes, she is. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated if there were no other questions from the Board, he would like 
to make a motion. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 6 

 

 

 
Motion: 
Chairman Nestorowicz made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
Conduct the Annual Sunflower Fundraising Festival on: 
August 6, 2016    Saturday: From 12 noon to 11 p.m. 
August 7, 2016    Sunday: From 12 noon to 8 p.m. 
With the Condition: That the music on Saturday is turned off at 10:00 p.m. 
 
Reasons being:  Needs Approval of the Board. 
 
Board Member Pauta Supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Chairman Nestorowicz and 
Support by Board Member Pauta to approve the petitioner’s request. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 

 
Ms. Irene Maciborski thanked the Board. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: St. Steven Decanski Church /  
          Helene Popovich  
REPRESENTATIVE:   Ms. Helene Popovich 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  14235 Eleven Mile Road  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-13-379-009 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to 
Conduct the Annual Parish Festival / Carnival on: 
Saturday, September 10, 2016:  From:  11:00 a.m. – to – 11:00 p.m.  
Sunday, September 11, 2016  From: 12 Noon – to – 8: 00 p.m. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.35: Fairs require the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 7 

 

 

 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state her name and address for 
the record. 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich, 31328 Louise Drive, Warren, Michigan 48088; appeared before the 
Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked Ms. Popovich the reasons for the petition. 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated she is present to petition for their annual Cert. fest on Septem-
ber 10th and 11th. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing, are there any members of the public 
who would like to speak on this item? (No response) Not seeing any….he asked if Secretary 
S. Brasza would like to mention the letter the Board received. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated yes. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated no, she does not need to read the whole thing, but…. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated just to mention that the Board received a call into the Council 
Secretary’s office from a Linda Stein in regards to the festival and that she does however, 
want the Board to know that so called church planted arborvitaes and goes on to state other 
things other than the actual festival. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated so basically, it is pretty much similar to past years? 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated yes it is. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated and they are also good with the condition that the music stops 
at 10:00 p.m.? 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated the music will stop at 10:00 p.m.; the shuttle will be taking 
people back to their cars, so the music and the barn will close at 10 as always. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated okay. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated if there are no other questions, she would like to make a motion 
to approve this request. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated he would like to ask the petitioner about the arborvitaes 
that the notice came up. 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated yes. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 8 

 

 

 
Board Member H. Brasza stated last year the Board granted them permission with the 
condition that they plant some arborvitaes, that was in the record… 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated correct. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated now were they all planted? 
 
Ms. Helene Popovich stated well they planted 80 arborvitaes and their planters were 
overzealous, so when they planted them they planted them a little bit too close, so they 
needed a few more and she does have a receipt with her from Lowe’s; she just picked up 50 
more arborvitaes and as they are speaking, they are being put into the ground, so the entire 
property is going to be filled with arborvitaes.  They not only did the west side, which the 
Board requested them to do, they also went across the north property line, where they had a 
neighbor that was having bit of an issue, so they hope the arborvitaes will fill the northern 
line of the property also.  And that is probably why they are a little bit short, but they have 50 
more. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated great and thanked the petitioner. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Pauta made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
Have the parish festival: 
Saturday, September 10, 2016 and Sunday, September 11, 2016 With the Condition: 
That the music ends at 10:00 p.m. and arborvitaes are in the process of being 
planted. 
 
Reasons being:  Size and Shape of the Lot. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated Needs approval of the Board.   
 
Board Member Pauta stated it Needs Approval of the Board. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza Supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Board Member Pauta and 
Support by Secretary S. Brasza to approve the petitioner’s request for their annual 
festival; reason being:  Needs Approval of the Board; Roll Call. 
 
(Additions were placed in the initial motion) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 9 

 

 

 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 
 

Ms. Helene Popovich thanked the Board and asked if they could get the site plans back. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated they would be more than glad to take them back the next year; it 
is a cost saving measure. 
 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: John Raniszewski 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  2528 Irma 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-06-376-006 
ZONE:     R-1-A 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to 
Retain a (20’2” x 10’9”) 216.792 sq. ft. shed to no less than 10’of the rear property line. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.20 Paragraph (a) Item 5:  All accessory structures, excluding garages, will not 
exceed a total of 120 square feet. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address for 
the record along with the reasons for the petition. 
 
Mr. John Raniszewski, 2528 Irma, Warren, Michigan, 48092; appeared before the Board 
and stated the reason for his petition is to be able to retain the structure on his property. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing, are there any members of the public 
who would like to speak on this item?  (No response)  Not seeing any, he turned the matter 
to the Board. 
 
Board Member Anglin asked what the overall size of the lot is. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 10 

 

 

 
Board Member H. Brasza stated it is 91’ x 300’. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated it is 91’ x 300’; if he looks at the last page of the documents… 
 
Board Member Anglin stated that is a pretty good size lot. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated it is a very deep lot. 
 
Board Member Wallace stated on the page it says cabana with an arrow and it says 15’ x 9? 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, City of Warren, Zoning Inspector stated that picture is from the City 
records, so it is not his…that is what the City Assessor has on their records as the stuff; 
which does not match the actual survey, so they have to do some cleaning up somewhere. 
 
Board Member Wallace thanked Mr. Watripont. 
 
Mr. John Raniszewski stated recently he put a screen and porch in the back of his garage 
and the recent measurement on that has several names as the Board could see: cabana, 
pool house, shed; the measurements are 20.1’ x 8.2’.  That is the recent thing that he just 
got from the city in the last two weeks. 
 
Board Member Wallace thanked Mr. Raniszewski. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated unless anyone else has any comments, he would like to 
make a motion.  
 

Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
Retain a (20’2” x 10’9”) 216.792 sq. ft. shed to no less than 10’of the rear property line. 
 

Chairman Nestorowicz stated he had a quick discussion regarding that.  Because he knows 
that he is stating it is 20’2” x 10’9”, but if it is actually smaller… 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated he thinks they should read what is on the record and just… 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated it was posted… 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated it is posted that way. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated okay. 

 
Reasons being:  Size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Anglin Supported the motion. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 11 

 

 

 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Board Member H. Brasza and 
Support by Board Member Anglin to approve the petitioner’s request. Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza    Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 

 
Mr. John Raniszewski thanked the Board. 
 
 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: Allied Signs, Inc / Mr. Patrick Stieber 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Allied Signs, Inc / Mr. Patrick Stieber 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  8303 Twelve Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-10-353-010 
ZONE:     C-2 & P 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to 
Install one (1) wall sign 18’ -10.128” x 7’ -9.375” = 146.628 sq. ft. on the front elevation. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sq. ft. shall be 
allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state their names and 
addresses for the record along with the reasons for the petition. 
 
Mr. Patrick Stieber, 33650 Giftos Drive, Clinton Township, Michigan; appeared before the 
Board. 
 
Mr. Tom Petzold, 20630 Harper Avenue, Harper Woods, Michigan; appeared before the 
Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the reasons for the petition today. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 12 

 

 

 
 
Mr. Patrick Stieber stated they are here again tonight for another sign at the Tech Plaza; 
tonight is the DSW is the new retailer going into this new space.  They are asking for a 
variance for square footage again for this retailer. Total square footage of 146.628 square 
feet of signage.  They feel that this signage is needed due to the setbacks from the road, the 
traffic flows on both Twelve Mile and on Van Dyke; they really feel like there is a hardship of 
lack of identification due to these traffic flows and setbacks on these roads.  They feel what 
they are proposing definitely fits in with the architecture of this building if they look at the 
rendering showing the sign on the wall; it really fits in well with the architecture of it.  There 
will not be any detrimental effects to the area, their surrounding tenants, it is very similar to 
the other tenants that have been approved at this location, and that is pretty much the just of 
what they are asking for.  If the Board has any questions, they would be happy to answer 
them. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Mr. Stieber and stated this is a public hearing; are there any 
members of the public who would like to speak on this item?  (No responses) Not seeing 
any, he turned the matter of the Board.  He actually does have just one question.  He 
agrees that with the signage on the elevation there will look fine, but on the one drawing he 
was just wondering, what is this ‘Now Open’ over on the side there, is that… 
 
Mr. Patrick Stieber stated that is a temporary banner that they typically would like to put up 
when the store opens, the day of the opening.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated okay, so it is not anything that is up there afterwards though. 
 
Mr. Patrick Stieber stated yes. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Mr. Stieber.  Not seeing any….are there any other 
comments from the Board?  
 
 

Motion: 
Chairman Nestorowicz made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
Install one (1) wall sign 18’ -10.128” x 7’ -9.375” = 146.628 sq. ft. on the front elevation. 
 
Reasons being:  Size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Anglin Supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Chairman Nestorowicz and 
Support by Board Member Anglin to approve the petitioner’s request for reasons 
stated in the motion. Roll Call. 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 13 

 

 

 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (7 – 1). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   No, there are too many signs over there and 146 
      sq. ft. is a little different than 40, and 5 Below 
      had 40 lawn signs out there last Friday. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 

 
Mr. Stieber thanked the Board. 
 
 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: 24620 Schoenherr, LLC 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Charles H. Earl Atty 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  24600 & 24620 Schoenherr Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-25-101-006 and 13-25-101-007 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Retain existing hard surface parking and outdoor storage to the property line along the 

west property line (Schoenherr) per the plan. 
2. Retain 555’ of existing barb wire on top of 6’ chain link fence and allow an additional 345’ 

of barb wire, for a total of 900’ of fence with barb wire. 
3. Waive 16,354 square feet of required off street parking. 
4. Allow 68,723 square feet of outside storage (55,721 square feet in excess of the city 

ordinance.) 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.06: No part of any required yard, except a rear or side yard shall be used for the 
storage of vehicles.  Any portion of a lot in front of the front building line shall be used for 
ornamental purposes only and nothing shall be placed thereon except trees, shrubs, or 
items of similar nature. 
Section 4D.17 Paragraph (b):  Prohibited fences and walls.  Barbed wire.  No person 
shall construct or cause to be constructed a fence or wall with barbed wire partially or wholly 
affixed to the fence or wall around any property, street, alley, lane, public highway or in front 
of any public place or space, except as approved for a specific location by the Zoning Board 
of Appeals. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 14 

 

 

 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (h) Item (23):  Such space shall not be less than one (1) parking 
space for each four (4) employees, computed on the basis of the greatest number of per-
sons to be employed at any one period during the day or night, and in no case shall the area 
allotted to off-street parking be less than one hundred (100) percent of the total floor area. 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (s):  Outdoor storage other than junk:  Outdoor storage other 
than junk: All open storage shall be located in a designated area approved by the Planning 
Commission as part of the site plan approval.  The area shall be enclosed on three (3) sides 
by chain link fencing with metal / plastic slats used for screening as deemed necessary by 
the Planning Commission.  The designated area shall always be hard surfaced and 
screened from the public street…The designated area shall not exceed 50 percent of the 
gross floor area of the primary structure on the site…An open driveway shall be provided 
that has a graded roadway, is hard surfaced and maintained from the street to the storage 
area in order to permit clear access for fire trucks at any time to the open storage areas. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address for 
the record along with the reasons for the petition. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl, Attorney at Law, 31851 Mound Road, Warren; appeared before the Board 
and stated that he represents the applicant on this petition.  They are probably well aware 
that this property is on the east side of Schoenherr Road just shortly south of Ten Mile 
Road.  It borders the railroad tracks to the east of the property as the railroad track follows 
an angular direction from southwest to northeast, sort of mirroring the west side of 
Groesbeck.  This property was developed back in the 1960s as an outside storage 
lumberyard.  Back in 1966 he thinks there was a variance issued that approved that outside 
storage on this site.  Since that time in the last few years, this property was left for dead 
after foreclosure, his client purchased it early in 2015 and since that time, has totally 
refurbished the building—new roof, new electricity, new plumbing, new HVAC—he has 
gotten all the inspections through the certificate of compliance process in the city and has a 
certificate of occupancy or compliance for the structure.  What the Board sees there now is 
exactly what they propose to use.  They have been to the Planning Commission, they got a 
unanimous recommendation from the Commission for this particular site as the Board sees 
it; they got a positive recommendation from the Planning Staff for the site as the Board sees 
it.  In the plan that they see, there would not be a fence post moved, there would not be a 
bumper block moved, and what the Planning Commission has asked them to do, is repave 
the approaches that go into the property; otherwise, what they see is what will be there, as 
was approved back in the 1960s.  Their request is actually to store operatives and he thinks 
that is a keyword ‘operative’ motor vehicles, passenger cars, light duty trucks, trailers and 
boats.  They are not inviting the general public into this site, there would not be a sign 
outside that advertises a business; this is effectively private storage and it will be effectively 
closed to the public.  He tried to color code the plan that the Board has before them and he 
is looking at it from south to north; the blue outline is the building, it is there, it is existing; it 
was built with a permit; it is not going to change.  The pink area is the parking area that 
exists; it was developed with approval and it is not proposed to change.  The yellow area is 
the area of fence that encloses their storage facility both on the north side and the south 
side of the building and the orange, two orange spots on the north end and the south end 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 15 

 

 

are the spots where the outside storage and the fence patchily touch the property line; 
which was developed as he said back in the 60s.  Their hardships are a couple of things.  
One is the size and shape of the property strangely enough; it is a unique triangular shape 
that is caused by the railroad track and the road frontage on Schoenherr and also on the 
plan up in the railroad side and the north and in the south, you see like a box marked with 
an X, which are the high tension power poles and there is a substantial Edison easement 
that runs west from the railroad track property line into the property; which pretty much 
prevents its development for any other purpose.  The barb wire of course, they are asking 
that for security and to improve and deter folks from coming onto their property and taking 
valuable assets that are being stored.  He would be happy to answer any questions that 
they might have as they consider the petition.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing, are there any members of the public 
who would like to speak on this item? (No response) Not seeing any, he turned the matter to 
the Board.  He has a couple of quick questions….there is a letter they have to read in first. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza thanked Chairman Nestorowicz and stated this letter came from Mr. 
Glenn Nowicki, President of Hunt Automotive Electronics. He actually states…emphatically 
our vote is no to the request and hopefully yours is… along with just a couple other words. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Secretary S. Brasza and stated he has a couple of 
questions.  For the storage, he said this would be automobiles or what else is he looking to 
store there?  
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated yes and they submitted that to the Planning Commission and the 
Planning Commission and the planning staff was very—he guesses he would say—
meticulous about them stating what they were going to store and it is passenger cars, light 
weight trucks, trailers and boats.  And that is what is outside, outside storage, which is the 
proposal. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated and it is all usable and in running order? None of it is junk or 
collision or any of that kind of storage? 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated it is not a junk yard, it is all operative equipment, and it is not 
anything in need of repair and they are not a repair facility. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated he actually does have an issue with the second item that he is 
asking for, where they are actually keeping barb wire and then asking for additional barb 
wire; he knows personally he is not a fan of having barb wire in the city.  Does he have any 
comments on that?  
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he does as a matter of fact.  He guesses he would ask back to him 
(Chair) and to the other Board Members what really is unlikable about barb wire.  Is there 
something in particular that is unlikable about it?  
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 16 

 

 

 
Secretary S. Brasza stated she thinks it denotes a need for a security that is unpleasant 
when there are so many other options; it is passé.  
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated unpleasant, okay, he got that. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated what they are looking at is more towards the south end of the 
city and with that they want to air on the side of positive and going up shortly, just a couple 
of blocks north of there will be a new Meijers and so the area would like to keep a little more 
upbeat and she thinks that barb wire denotes a kind of a negative, in her eyes and she 
personally agrees with Chairman Nestorowicz, she will not…. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he guesses that he thinks sums up almost everyone’s opinion, and 
unless anybody else has a thought, but he will tell them what he thinks. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated that actually Board Member Pauta had a comment to make. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated not only does the barb wire kind of looks tacky, her concern is 
the Police and the Fire Department; if they have to ever get into this property and they have 
to go through barb wire, she does not think that is a very safe thing to do. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Board Member Pauta. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she would like to say however, that in the past they have 
allowed—and this is where it is right now—along the railroad sidings that the public does not 
really see that and it really is important to keep that backside where anyone could just go 
and…so, she could agree with Chair actually on some of the other places that they want to 
put it, but she would say on the railroad siding it is not really that. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated because he has the existing 555’, that is along the railroad 
track, correct, or not? 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he thinks the railroad track and maybe Mr. Watripont has a…he 
thinks the railroad track is about 300 and some feet on that side.   
 
Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated because of the past and the railroad track is what 
put up the original barb wire, they have left the barb wire off of any comment, off of any 
petitions going forward as it seemed to be as a Federal Granted item, so they do not have it 
on there at all as any part of the calculation. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated so that railroad track barb wire is not in question here? 
 
Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated right. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated yes, but the additional barb wire that he is asking for is on the 
other parts of the fence that are not along the railroad track, correct? 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 17 

 

 

 
 
Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated yes, that is right. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he guesses he sort of set aside the…based on his comment that he 
was going to speak to that about the railroad; he would set aside the barb wire that is along 
the railroad fence that is almost identical on the east side of the railroad crack in that 
industrial site also and he guesses he would ask the Board to affirmatively state in their 
consideration that that barb wire is appropriate.  But here is his kind of random thoughts 
about barb wire.  First of all, the zoning ordinance says that barb wire is subject to approval 
by the Zoning Board of Appeals and to him it is a little bit similar to them approving the 
festival that they just had.  That by the ordinance stating it that way is not totally banning it 
but suggesting that you come up with some criteria for the Board’s consideration of the barb 
wire and that is why the Board is present and that is why they are asking for this is some 
criteria for it.  He thinks that historically he has been doing this for a long time and he has 
seen this Board for 35 years of pretty much saying barb wire is not something they would 
like to do without any criteria one way or the other.   
 
But he thinks that today in an industrial area on a main road with railroad siding, with 
industrial shops on all sides without side storage in this day and age of valuable assets, they 
need to try and deter the—he guesses—the common thief, who might go by and interrupt 
their operation if the barb wire is not there.  And the thing that is more unlikable than wire, 
are crime statistics.  And when there is an intrusion, it goes on the record at the Police 
Department and it becomes a crime statistic and crime statistics he thinks reduce property 
values more than barb wire; they reduce property values for sure in a zip code; they expand 
and increase car insurance race in a zip code; they increase fire and homeowners and other 
liability insurance rates in a zip code and it becomes a balancing act.  What do they really 
want to do there, do they want to say ‘you know what it’s just kind of unlikable’; which guess 
what, it is’ but there are places that it might be appropriate and they think this is one of them 
and because they are storing something that is not junk, that is valuable, it is appropriate for 
outside storage and they just think that that criteria might be something like in an industrial 
area, surrounded by industry and he knows Meijer’s is a third of a mile up the street, which 
is a different neighborhood and it is on a main road, they are storing valuables and the barb 
wire has been there for 50 years.  With that, it is not really so much of a hardship like the 
other dimensional variances; it is something like approving the festivals. They need the 
Board’s approval to do it, they are asking for it and they respect their decision. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Mr. Early and stated they have heard his comments on that 
and he will state that he is not in favor of approving the additional barb wire on the property, 
so he knows he at least will not be voting for that. 
 
Board Member Fisher stated he thinks that they need to be clear.  The barb wire is not just 
an issue that is unpleasant, barb wire could be dangerous.  There have been instances 
where teenagers have been playing somewhere they should not be and have been caught 
up on barb wire have been seriously injured; it is not just a matter of they do not like what it 
looks like, people could get hurt.   



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 18 

 

 

 
Now, there may be situations where barb wire is appropriate along railroad for instance 
where federal regulations require it, but it is not just a matter of it does not look pretty, it is a 
matter of safety and he is opposed to barb wire unless he could tell him that it provides more 
safety than the danger that it causes and he does not see that in this situation; he does not 
see that in most situations, so he does not think this is like a festival where he is coming to 
the Board and simply saying look we need your approval, so we would love your approval 
and here is what we are doing for the community; this is hey we want to put something 
dangerous in your community and we need you permission and so the bar is higher.  It is 
not the same as a festival; it is higher because they are providing a danger to the 
community, so their duty is higher as far as what they need to prove to the Board.  He thinks 
that it is completely wrong to say that this is similar to a festival.  He is asking the Board to 
put something dangerous in; somewhere he does not think is appropriate and so he could 
not support it.   
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he guesses he would say that he mostly agrees with him (Board 
Member Fisher) that it is dangerous and he did not mean to compare the festival with the 
barb wire, he meant to compare the ordinance that makes this matter a matter of 
determination by the Zoning Board and they have some criteria in festivals, which is good 
and he thinks they are wonderful and so, maybe there is some criteria and it is a higher bar 
because it is dangerous, but it does require some factual basis for the Board’s decision and 
he respects their decision that they think it is dangerous.  What he would like to ask the 
Board to do is maybe to separate the items if they would to vote on the barb wire separately 
and as he said; he wanted to make his position known and he respects their positions and 
he asks them that they vote separately on the other three (3) items if they would consider 
that and they move forward. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated another questions.  The warehouse itself, would that be indoor 
storage?  
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated yes; yes, it is exactly what is there. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated when he said private, does he mean they will not be having 
people come in and out and it would not be manned… 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated no; nope.  There are office workers in the office space in the front of 
the building; they will be there during normal working hours. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza thanked Mr. Earl. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza asked who owns these vehicles then. If they are private and no 
one from the public is coming in, who owns all of these things? 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated that is a good question and there are vehicles and all of the items to 
be outside stored and all of the items stored inside, are all items that have been pawned by 
his client who operates four (4) pawn shops.  



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 19 

 

 

 
Board Member H. Brasza stated he has been to a pawn shop and he has seen vehicles 
from pawn shops and some of them are not running the best.  They are not going to do any 
service, any maintenance, and any kind of work….? 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated they are strictly not in that business; his client is very conservative 
about his business; he is not going to loan money on something that he does not think is 
worth something more than what it is that is being loaned and so he is not interested in 
inoperative vehicles, he is not interested in rundown equipment.  He wants and his 
customers are folks that have items they bring him that are salable and quality. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated okay back to the barb wire, back to the color coding.  Is the 
orange the area that does not have barb wire that they are asking for? 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated the area where there is no barb wire now, is the east/west line on 
the north of the site.  There is no barb wire on the top of that fence.   
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated and how about the part that is along Schoenherr. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated there is barb wire there.  There is barb wire every place else, except 
the 400 some feet along the north fence. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated right and to him that is the only area that he would say…in 
addition to the railroad track, that side he could see but the part that is facing the public, the 
part along Schoenherr, the part along the parking lot, he is opposed to that part.  That is just 
his personal opinion that that is the public facing part of it and that is where they are really 
trying to clean up for look and feel of the area and not only the danger but he thinks the view 
of the public when they see barb wire on top of a 6 foot fence, you know, it changes the 
image of the area and it is not a positive image; it is an industrial image and… 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated and if the barb wire is taken down on the Schoenherr side, then 
maybe that improves the image and... 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated that is just his opinion. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated they are for that.  They would be certainly be amenable to the idea 
of eliminating the barb wire on all the…he guesses he would say is the westerly fences, so 
that is all that is on the Schoenherr side.  Basically, they think to the north is a junk yard; 
there are all cars lined up against that fence that are in need of repair and maybe body shop 
kind of work and they would like to have the barb wire there, but once again, it is the Board’s 
discretion.  
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated and the railroad track he thinks everyone…or at least his 
opinion is the railroad track is the part that is most appropriate; but that is just his opinion. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 20 

 

 

 
Mr. Charles Earl stated he would be happy if they separated that out also to make it clear 
that that is not a matter of local jurisdiction he guesses. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated he would like to actually make a motion if there are no other 
discussions, but he does not want to actually separate it and he will tell him why, because if 
they separate out the barb wire, he wants to make sure the condition of it going down along 
Schoenherr is part of the motion.  So this is the motion he would like to make. 
 
 

Motion: 
Chairman Nestorowicz made the motion to approve: 
Item 1: Retain existing hard surface parking and outdoor storage to the property 

line along the west property line (Schoenherr) per the plan. 
Item 3: Waive 16,354 square feet of required off street parking. 
Item 4: Allow 68,723 square feet of outside storage.  
With the Condition:  That the is no barb wire along the west or north fence lines; so 
exiting barb wire along in the Schoenherr west side and the north side would be re-
moved.  Only barb wire that is allowed is along the railroad tracks. 
 
Reasons being:  Size and Shape of the Lot. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza Supported the motion. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated since the Board changed it, do they need the peti-
tioner’s concurrence? 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked Mr. Earl if the Board had his concurrence for that 
motion. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated they bet and thanked the Board; yes.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion by Chairman Nestorowicz and 
Support by Board Member H. Brasza to approve the petitioner’s request with the 
Conditions stated regarding the barb wire.  Reasons being: Size and Shape of 
the Lot. 
 
Mr. Charles Earl stated if he heard that correctly that all of the barb wire is to be 
removed except that along the railroad track on top of the line.   
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated correct. 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 21 

 

 

 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to Approve and the motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Wallace  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request is Granted. 

 
Mr. Charles Earl thanked the Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Attorney Earl. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING:    APPLICANT: Najib Atisha / A.L.I. 8 Mile LLC-USE- 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Najib Atisha 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  11177 Eight Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-34-401-006 
ZONE:     M-3 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to -USE- 
1. Allow hard surface parking in front yard setback on: 
 a. East side of property to within 20’ of the south property line. 
 b. West side of property to within 18’ of the south property line. 
2. To waive 70,243 square feet of required off street parking. 
3. To waive the required greenbelt and/or wall and allow a steel/metal fence on the east 

property line. 
4. To allow parking spaces to be 20’ in length on the east property line. 
5. To waive the required hard surface and drainage and allow asphalt millings. 
6. To allow an outdoor scrap metal processing. 
7. To allow a second hand goods business to within 172.3 feet from residential. 
8. To allow a 12 foot greenbelt along the west property line. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 2.26 Paragraph (b): Greenbelt, 20’ wide, a decorative masonry wall, not more 
than six (6) feet in height and not less than eight (8) inches in thickness may be substituted 
for the greenbelts, upon approval of the Planning Director, and shall be maintained in an 
attractive condition and structurally sound. 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (h) Item 23: One (1) square foot of parking area required for each 
sq. ft. of floor area for buildings in M-3 Districts. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 22 

 

 

 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (i):  All spaces that abut a continuous curb required in accordance 
with Section 16.07 of this Ordinance or a common property line shall be laid out with 22’ 
length. 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (k):  All off-street parking areas shall be provided with adequate 
ingress and egress, shall be hard surfaced, shall be maintained in a usable dustproof 
condition, shall be graded and drained to dispose of all surface water, provide protective 
bumper curbs as per Sections 4.32 (i) and 16.07, and shall otherwise comply with Section 
2.46 and 16.05 of this Ordinance. 
Section 17.02 Item (a): Front Yard, Front yard setback shall be 150 feet. 
Section 17.02 Item (c): Greenbelt, Along all zoning district boundary lines which border on 
a more restrictive zoning district.  Along all street property lines but may be omitted along 
the front yard when the front yard is landscaped. 20’ wide as per Section 2.26 
Section 17.02 Item (s): Open Storage other than Junk. All open storage shall be located 
in a designated area approved by the Planning Commission as a part of site plan approval.  
The area shall be enclosed on three (3) sides by chain link fencing with metal/plastic slats 
used for screening as deemed necessary by the Planning Commission.  In M-3 and M-4 
zones the Planning Commission shall determine whether screening of the outside storage is 
necessary based on the relationship of the storage to properties zoned residential as 
identified in Section 3.01 (1—7) of the Zoning Ordinance. 
Section 17.02 Item (v): Off-street parking for any permitted use as required and regulated 
by Section 4.32. 
Section 14.01 Paragraph (r): Pawnshops and second hand dealer shall be permitted in C-2 
if the following locational criterion is complied with ITEM 1: The site for a pawnshop or 
second hand dealer shall be located more than five hundred (500) feet from all residential 
districts. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium if he missed the beginning of the 
meeting or was he…did he hear that for a Use Variance they do have get 6 votes of the 
Board.  He was told that he may not have preset at the meeting because they are one 
member short, so that he understands they need to have 6 votes to approve his petition. 
 
Individual at the podium stated:  That is fine. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address for 
the record along with the reasons for the petition.  
 
Mr. Najib Atisha, 11177 East Eight Mile Road; appeared before the Board and stated the 
reason for the petition is to create a trailer truck parking and storage and utilize the property.  
It is an old vacant industrial site; along his side is Nathan Hanawa, who is an engineer and 
an architect and a general contractor that is helping his out with the project. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the applicant if he had any hardship or anything else that he 
wanted to add on to his reasons. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 23 

 

 

 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated he thinks there was a letter that he included with his application for 
the first three and he is prepared to answer any questions that….the property itself has 
many hardships with… he means he could address them one at a time or he does not know 
how they would like him to address them or whatever…. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated he should actually just cover whatever he wants to actually 
cover before otherwise he turns it over to the public for them to comment. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha asked Chairman Nestorowicz if he wanted to turn it over to the public and 
then he could come back and address them or… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated no; anything he wants to address he needs to address at this 
time.   
 
Steven Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated the applicant did drop off 3, they realized he 
needed more variances; he told him that he was going to get those; he did not include those 
3; (to the petitioner he stated), he may want to read those three to the Board as well.  
Because he was waiting for and thought he was going to bring it there and hand the Board 
his major list of his hardships, which…. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza to Mr. Watripont stated they could not accept that at this time. The 
Board could not accept 3 additional variances. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated no; when he first went to them, they noticed 
there was additional variances and he had 3 that he had listed hardships for.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated okay. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont stated he told him there were more variances Everett needed; they 
were all posted property and everything else.  The Board is not getting anything additional. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated so he is giving the Board the hardship. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont stated he held that because he thought they were getting a new piece 
of paper that he was going to supply and so he did not forward that with the… 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated because it is not in their package; so does he have that? 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont stated right, so that is where he wanted to make sure the applicant tells 
the Board those hardships rather than rely on something that he knows did not happen 
because he was waiting for it from him; to set the record clear. 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 24 

 

 

 
Mr. Najib Atisha apologized and stated he thought the Board received the original 3 and the 
ones Mr. Watripont had it on that they do not have those.  He could go in order.  The east 
side of the property line, they are asking for 20 feet; they are east side of the property within 
20 feet of the property line.  There is existing pavement and parking within 150 feet that is 
required as a setback, so they are asking that they last gave 20 feet of it and keep the 
additional paved as additional parking for the sight. Currently, the parking is up to the 
sidewalk, even with the 20 feet, it is going to put their meter pits and some of their utilities 
outside in that 20 feet landscaped area and then because of the parking on the west side of 
the property, in order to fit in the parking there on one side, it is 18 feet, so that would be for 
A & B. And then number 2, they are asking to waive 70,243 square feet of required off street 
parking.  This facility is currently being used as a storage facility and most of the storage 
facilities do not require any parking spaces; he has gone to other storage facilities that are in 
the City of Warren, the most they have is maybe 6 to 12 storage facilities.  He thinks they 
are providing approximately 300 spaces onsite and then 200 and some are on the eastern 
portion of the property; chances are those will never be used, but they are providing them 
for just in case.  And then, number 3 they are asking to waive the required greenbelt and the 
concrete wall and allow them to put up a steel metal fence on the east property line. 
Currently there is an existing fence that is on the eastern portion of the property that starts 
from Eight Mile and he thinks it goes about 1,600 feet deep into the property; some of it 
abuts industrial and some of it abuts commercial and some of it abuts residential property.  
That fence has been there he believes since the property was built back in 1939; there is a 
substantial amount of trees that are along the property line; he has shared the photos with 
Ron Wuerth in the Planning Commission and with Everett.  It is not that they do not want to 
build the wall, there are some liability reasons.  If they could get…which he will have the 
engineer and the contractor maybe explain some of the issues that they have with that and 
that is why they are asking for that. 
 
Mr. Nathan Hanawa stated some of the problems in building that wall and he wants to tell 
the Board a little bit about himself. They build walls all over the country: concrete decks, 
concrete wall and when he looked at this project, the complexities here is that he has all 
those trees along there and some of those trees are large and there are houses really close 
to the fence line; if they go in there and start trenching for a footing, they are going to be 
yanking on the trunks of the trees, which could disturb the foundation there. Mr. Atisha has 
no problem putting up a wall but they would like to ask for three things, which are not 
unreasonable. 1) They need access to the neighbors’ properties in order to setup forms on 
one side and remove them; they would have to have access to the residential properties in 
order to accomplish the job. 2) They cannot take responsibility for any drainage because 
when they put up the wall, obviously were imperiling water of flowing back into their property 
and there could be ponds of water along that concrete wall, which occurs on many projects, 
which he is sure the Board is aware of. They need some kind of hold harmless agreement 
because they do not know what they are going to get into once they start trenching for these 
footings; trying to pull these roots out. It is a very difficult job; it is not that east. If the houses 
were further away, it would be a little easier, but some houses are literally within 3 feet of 
where the work is going to take place. Again, they have no problem constructing a wall but 
they would like to come to an agreement on these 3 conditions. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 25 

 

 

 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if the petitioner had any other items that he wanted to bring 
up. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated some of the houses are within 3 feet of the fence line, the property 
line and between the fence line and the residents that are there, there are thick existing 
trees that are on the neighbors, which are 12 inch or more in diameter, so literally there are 
trees within 18 to 20 inches from some of the neighbors’ houses; that is why they were 
asking for the metal but if the metal is not acceptable, then if they could get the 3 things that 
were mentioned, they would be more than happy to put up the wall.  Basically, number 4 is 
about the same thing.  It has been an existing parking lot since that fence was put up, if they 
put up the wall, they just ask that they are allowed to be able to use the 20 feet that would 
be required as a setback as parking.  Number 6 and 7—he is affiliated with about 20 grocery 
stores and when they renovate a store, they remodel a store, they bring the equipment to 
the site and then they dissemble it and separate the aluminum from copper from stainless 
steel and it was with Everett Murphy’s recommendations that they apply for that. Number 8, 
along the western portion of the property line, there is an existing fence, he thinks it is M-2, 
his neighbor is in M-2 zone; currently there is anywhere between 12 to 15 feet of greenbelt, 
so they would just like to establish 12 foot greenbelt.  He does not know if some of these 
variances have been issued before or not; he has asked the city and they said they do not 
have any records that go that far back.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated he skipped the Use Variance, number 7. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha apologized. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated he skipped the Use Variance, number 7 as he was going down 
the line. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated number 7; he really does not…where it says to allow second hand 
goods business within 172 feet, to be honest with the Board, he does not even know what 
that means.  The only thing is they process…if they bring in metal from a market, equipment 
from a supermarket, they process it there, but he thinks Everett said that is considered a 
second hand.  They do not buy; nobody comes from the street and sells them anything; they 
are not a pawn shop, they are not a scrap metal facility, so they do not buy scrap metal from 
anybody, so he really does not know.  He thinks that was something that was added by the 
city. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked Mr. Watripont if he had a comment on that. 
 
Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated he does have comments, but he would like Mr. 
Atisha to finish and then he could address it.  But the second hand goods business is part of 
the scrapping outdoors that he is doing.  It was their understanding that he does turn around 
and sell that. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 26 

 

 

 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated well once they separate the metal, they take it either next door to 
SLC recycling or other recycling companies; but they do not buy it but once they sort it, they 
sell it.   
 
Mr. Nathan Hanawa stated but they take it out to sell them. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated yes, they take it out to sell it and nobody… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated okay. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she thinks there is a time limit on this… (Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the petitioner if they had any other comments or else he will 
turn this matter over to the public then. 
 
Mr. Najib Atisha stated he has one other comment that he would like the Board to be aware 
of.  On July 11th he received a phone call from one of the neighbors that is adjacent to the 
property; he introduced himself to him and said that he was a neighbor adjacent to the 
property; he was concerned that the petitioner was asking for a variance on the wall, that he 
was concerned that he wanted to move out of the neighborhood, that if he was willing to buy 
his house, that he would not object to this, but if not, he was going to get a petition and go 
around the neighborhood and get everybody to sign it and come here and protest.  He has 
some text messages to that effect and he had conversations like he said, it was around 
12:30 on July 11th.   The gentleman is here now, he had not met him before, but he met him 
before the meeting. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Mr. Atisha and stated this is a public hearing; he will turn 
this matter over to the public.  Anyone who has any comments to please approach the 
podium one at a time and Mr. Watripont you may begin. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated as he stated earlier, they did not receive the 
hardships, so he did not have any time to react to the hardships until they have heard them 
here.  With regards to the lot size itself, they believe there is…it says M-3 that it could be 
used pretty much as is and asking for 8 variances seems like a lot.  He did not hear a real 
hardship for the reason to waive the parking when he has that much room, also other than it 
is not needed.  He does understand on the east side that his spots are limited.  In his plan, 
he wants to put trucks on there and he knows that zoning has said that the refrigerated 
trucks could not be along the east property line.  He thinks as part of this that actually should 
just be employee and customer parking along that whole property line and no trucks in that 
area.  He thanked the Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if there is any other…he asked the individual at the podium to 
state his name and address for the record along with his comments or questions. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 27 

 

 

 
Mr. Neil Stevens, 11203 Fisher Avenue; appeared before the Board.  (Mr. Stevens handed 
photos to the Board).  He wanted to do it in a little bit different order than they are stated.  
He wants to start off with the draining issue.  For the Board’s information, he is the 
gentleman who called in Monday; his interest was to protect the value of his property and it 
is a poor neighborhood and he does not think they get many people there, so he organized 
to protect the value of the property and not allow some of these variances.  What the Board 
sees on those pictures, do all of them have one…this was taken last Friday.  Friday morning 
he woke up, they had a Thursday night storm, so the pictures on the bottom, he is on Fisher 
Avenue right next to the subject property, that was the rain—they could see there is a 
drainage issue there—then if they go to the top right of the picture, that is his backyard; it 
drains he believes some is there and the one behind him, he talked to him tonight, same 
issued, there is some drainage things and he will tell them about the other picture in a 
second.  His concern is with the number 3….number 5, to waive the required hard surface 
and drainage and allow asphalt millings.  When he talked to him, the gentleman mentioned 
that there are two (2) catch basins and maybe in better times, they will catch all that.  But it 
took two days and the generator powering the pump, Friday and Saturday just to drain that 
off, so there are some real drainage issues.  If the catch basins take care of it, he thinks that 
is wonderful and he does not need drainage, he is all for that; if it does not, he is against 
and they are against having asphalt millings; they do not want drainage issues coming over.  
Now, he will go next to the wall; he wanted to address the issue with the wall.  Code says 
there is a 6 foot poured concrete wall; everyone he has talked to and he has talked to a lot 
of people, and has letters that he will give to the Board in a minute, is that no one wants that 
because it hurts property values; he asked for pardon, the concrete wall is good they want 
that, the sheet metal wall they do not want it.  It is cheap, it rusts, it rattles in the wind, 
scrappers could steal it and it looks crappy; this neighborhood down there is lower Warren, 
below Toepfer there is 4 roads, he thinks about what the mayor says how they want to stop 
blight in Warren and this is just on the edge of it, it is a very fragile neighborhood down there 
and he is a landlord and he has rentals around and this was a rental at one point until he 
moved into this house; it is hard to find good renters and when there is a trashy looking 
place next door, it is hard and it invites people that they…it is harder to rent and they usually 
have more problems.  They want to have a nice wall according to the code and have that 6 
foot poured concrete wall with a façade on it—they think that will look really good—he called 
his real estate professional that he works with and she told him that it would hurt property 
values having that sheet metal; so they are all adamantly for having to do that. The 
applicant’s concern was a lot of those trees along there that might present some liabilities, 
there are four (4) streets—that means there are eight (8) houses one of each side of the 
street—that join right up against that—he is one of those people—so far he has been able to 
get—just yesterday and today—he talked to four (4) of those and he has letters; everyone of 
them consider the trees that they have on the edge of their properties as weeds, just 20 foot 
high weeds and they would love to see them gone, so he does not want him (applicant) to 
worry about hurting their trees or anything; they would love to see them if they go with the 
wall; they are all delighted for that.  Another concern that he has is, he is not sure he has 
seen their plans and it was just on the east side of the property, as of right now you could 
see all those trailers parked right against the east side—he is not sure if the applicant is 
petitioning that he could park trailers on the east side?  



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 28 

 

 

 
 
(Inaudible)  
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated well there is a lot of noise from that and they understand there is a 
give and take and they understand that they are close to the M-3 industrial area, but the 
other day—it was either Wednesday or Thursday—he woke up at 4:30 a.m. and within 
minutes—he does not think it was them that woke him—but there are people milling around 
out there, is there any type of sound ordinance like from 11 at night until 7; does something 
like that exist Steve? (Directed question at Steve Watripont, Warren Zoning Inspector)  
While he (Steve) is looking it up, he will continue to speak.  Another neighbor that is present, 
they want to protect it so that for living there next door that they do not have trucks running 
around in the middle of the night; it is going to wake them and wake babies or old people 
like him or whatever; that is what they hope to accomplish with that.  As far as the scrap 
metal, he thinks that it is wonderful; if all they are doing is taking down some fridges—that 
are out of their 12 stores—he thinks that is wonderful, they could go ahead and do it, if it 
gets bigger than that, he would like to know more about it.  In summation, what he is going 
to do is ask Ann to come up again; there are four (4) letters from people that live right next 
door to that property.  They are fine with them taking out the trees if that happens—there are 
23 more letters from people in that area that feel that this is a fragile neighborhood that they 
do not want this to encroach upon their values, they want to maintain the integrity of the 
neighborhood as good as they can.  He thanked the Board for their time. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated to answer the noise question, an M-3 could 
have a 24-hour operation and the noise decibels are at 85, if that helps. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated if he could say one more thing? To the petitioner, if those are trailers 
parked up against the east wall like they could see them, they would oppose to that.  He 
thanked Mr. Watripont for answering that question.  He asked Mr. Watripont how loud is 85 
decibels? 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated he is not sure. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens thanked the Board. 
 
Ms. Betty Burrow, 11204 Fisher, Warren; appeared before the Board and stated that she 
has resided in her property for 45 years and that they definitely need that wall to help for the 
sound; they are out there at 4:30 in the morning banging on things, 4:30, 5:00 o’clock in the 
morning; that is not right to treat anybody that way; they would not have it at their house; 
they would be the first ones out doing something about it.  That is all she has to say. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 29 

 

 

Mr. Kirk Sevener, 11211 Sherman, Warren, Michigan 48089; appeared before the Board 
and asked if there was a way he could put photos on the projector to show the Board?  
(Projector was put up for Mr. Sevener) (Mr. Sevener proceeded to explain his photographs 
to the Board).  Okay, this is one house over from him; he has lived there for 40 years way 
back from GE Carboloy was at full blown production over there.  To see what the applicant 
was talking about how the fence line is; this is a big elm tree—does the Board see what it 
has done to the fence—this has been like that for over 8 years, they have been trying to get 
stuff taken care of.  When they come out and just replaced this concrete in the past month, 
they dug underneath it and poured the concrete under it instead of cutting it down.  This 
fence is in so disrepair, almost a full length has gotten the Board’s favorite one foot of 
barbed wire on top that they cannot go with a standard sheet metal fence; what do they do 
when they get that?  They get like they do down the corner of Conant and Mound Road that 
big junkyard; that is just disgusting.  He means if they want to bring something back to the 
City of Warren, do not do that.  This one here is a little better picture; the tree itself is 18 ½ 
inches from the house—he is a carpenter by trade, he built bridges—he knows how to put 
these footings in poured wall, that was part of his job—he built freeways—the do need to 
give him the stuff that it is going to be doing too much.  He has had to do caissons to put 
pilling in them and concrete them in steel forms so that they did not bust foundations to drive 
the pile.  As the Board could see still, this is the water again that was left out there for 2 days 
after a pump.  Now, him being at the end of the run on Sherman right by Doetsch Industrial 
where he has a 4 foot block wall behind his house; what they did, they decided they were 
going to scoop up all the high weeds, these are piles of trash of the high weeds that are still 
laying out there; why do they have to be there for over a month; actually they have been 
there longer than that.  He had the city come out, they have had rat poison by the city for six 
months because of that stuff; he is not very happy with having to deal with that.  This is right 
over the fence, this was also a catch basin right here (explaining a photograph), what did 
they do, they filled it up with asphalt millings; if you put a band aid over it, you do not see it, 
nobody says anything.  He has been there 40 years, he knows what is there.  They had a 
problem with cutting oils and everything else seeping up from this when it was GE Carboloy.  
Another picture of how the piles of trash are out there; unmaintained fence again.  What 
they need, like if you take and go down…right down on Mullin, from his house between 
Toepfer and Sherman, see that nice wall right there, abet constructed, 6 foot wall; here is a 
little better picture of it, 6 foot wall.  They need a barrier and a baffle to keep anything on that 
side out; if they put those asphalt millings, they will not take care of the water problem; the 
water will still permeate between the millings, the grass will still grow and probably never be 
taken care of because they could not mow it if it is on millings. This is the ideal wall which 
will be good; the Board could probably see that there; this is behind Metro Sanitation—the 
fire they had a couple of years ago—what kept the fire from jumping over to the houses, an 
8 foot poured concrete wall.  They got a 6 foot with a foot of barb wire, why could they not 
have a 7 or 8 foot concrete wall; does that not look a lot better than sheet metals going up 
and down and blowing in the wind.  They would accept this without a problem (referring to a 
poured concrete wall photo); but the asphalt millings, the non-caring of drains, sheet metal 
walls, not taking care of the disrepair fence; those elm trees are nothing but garbage, they 
have had nothing with them but trouble in the 40 years he has been there; let them take 
them out, dig the footing, pour the wall.  That is his feelings and as he said, he did it for a 
living; he knows it could be done.  He thanked the Board. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 30 

 

 

 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated before they have the next comment, he would like the City 
Attorney to make a comment.  
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated in reference to the petitioner’s statement that he 
was not clear why one item that was presented to the Board to be voted on, which would be 
item #7, to allow a second hand goods business to operate within a 172.3 feet from 
residential; she took it upon herself to look at the definition of second hand dealers; the 
reason being is because this item or condition of it being a requirement would cause a 
different standard for the Board to be voting on.  Item #7 would be placing their request in a 
Use Variance verses placing your request in a non-Use Variance.  Now, pursuant to the City 
Ordinance, Section 2.77 Second Hand Dealers: excluded from the definition of second hand 
dealers, primarily engaged in selling used motor vehicles, trailers, boats, mobile homes, 
automobile parts and accessories, scrap and noise dealers.  Now she was not a party to 
their conversations with Mr. Murphy about applying for this petition, but to her understanding 
from what she heard from the petitioner’s description tonight of what his business is, it would 
meet this exception, which would require the Board to be voting on a non-use variance and 
the item should be posted properly and it would also be necessary because the Board 
would be using a different standard to review their item under, which would be the non-Use 
standard.  Does the Board have a representative from Mr. Murphy’s comments; she is just 
advising the Board that this item should be at least reviewed by Mr. Murphy or his 
department to determine whether or not it was posted correctly, so that the item would be 
reviewed under the proper standard.  She is going to turn it over to…respond. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated when Mr. Atisha first came, he dealt with Mr. 
Murphy, brought the app in, Mr. Murphy was not there when he received the app; he started 
putting everything together and Mr. Murphy told him that this is a second hand goods… 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated she is going to stop him there because she does 
not want to confuse the Board at all; she is just advising the Board to postpone this so that 
they could look into… 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated the second hand… 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City attorney stated this issue and whether it needs to be reposted or 
not, would be followed up. 
 
Mr. Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector stated from what he has heard from Mr. Atisha, he is 
in agreement with Ms. Canestrelli that it should not be a Use, because of the second hand if 
it is just the scrap but he would like to know more from Mr. Murphy on that matter. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated she is just advising the Board that the matter 
should be postponed to maybe a date uncertain so that they could have a conversation and 
have the matter reviewed, unless they want to choose to have a date where it could be 
reposted.  That is just her suggestion.   



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 31 

 

 

 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated if he may ask, because he agrees that it needs to be 
reposted; they want to make sure it is posted correctly.  Could they still finish the public 
hearing portion? 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated yes, that would be fine. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated because he does think this should be…they need to make 
sure it is posted correctly and be postponed.  But he does want to give everybody from the 
public here an opportunity to speak onto that… 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated yes. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated especially then if when it gets reposted the petitioner wants to 
make any changes to his petition perhaps. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated sure and the public will also be notified when it is 
going to be on the agenda again. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated and there will be an opportunity to…. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated there will be another public hearing, yes. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated in case there are any individuals that might not be 
able to make it to the next one. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated they could continue with the public hearing portion of this; but 
it looks like the Board will be actually postponing the vote on this to a later date, but the 
Board will give everyone there an opportunity to speak if they wanted to today still. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated yes and it will go on record. 
 
Ms. Gene Wolschleger, 11236 Sherman; appeared before the Board and stated that she 
agrees with everything irk Sevener said tonight.  This place has been an eye soar; she has 
lived in this neighborhood over 50 years and all she sees is weeds, weeds, weeds, 8 feet 
high, nothing ever taken care of then they go along and tear some apart and pile it up like 
Kirk showed.   



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 32 

 

 

 
 
She has company come over and they want to know who owns that factory and she has to 
put up with stuff like that.  The steel fence she is not against it; she does not want to hear 
the tingeing, she does not want to hear anything.  She would like to see 8 foot brick wall 
going up there.  She thanked the Board. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens asked if it just the one thing the Board is postponing. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated no, actually, it is going to be reposted.  
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated he meant the whole… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated the whole thing yes. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated the whole thing is going to be done again. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated yes. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated not just the second hand… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated the whole thing, yes. 
 
Mr. Neil Stevens stated so they will be re-notified. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated yes, they will all be re-notified. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated not seeing any other comments; he would like to make a 
motion. 
 
(Inaudible) 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated he closes the public hearing portion of this.   
 

Motion: 
Chairman Nestorowicz made the motion to Table this matter to a date to be de-
termined to give Everett in the Zoning Department a chance to look into the proper 
posting. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney stated just to make it clear, it could be properly 
posted, she is not sure, she just feels more comfortable if more research was 
done. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF July 13, 2016 
Page 33 

 

 

 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked Ms. Canestrelli and stated that everyone will re-
ceive a re-posting with the new date when the vote on this will take place. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza Supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated there is a motion to Table this item by Chairman 
Nestorowicz and Support by Secretary S. Brasza to Table to a date uncertain for 
further research and then it will be reposted to the public at that time.  
 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion to Table. The motion carried (8 – 0). 
 

This matter was Tabled to a date uncertain. 
 
 

14. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated not seeing any. 
 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to adjourn the meeting and supported by 
Chairman Nestorowicz. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (8 – 0). 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        Sherry Brasza 
        Secretary of the Board 


